r"
| 3
X

o

'J '- k 'J

(Y

1

Exsemnnap BDO
Npocumo noBepHyTH
rnicns nianucaHHs

PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Together with Independent Auditor’s Report

BDO



s

S

\ S S &

IS Y

PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Together with Independent Auditor’s Report

| ST ST S §

S %

| S 8

]

L

)

IBDO




P I 1 O

L/

\ 1 L Y Y 1 S Y

PISC KMZ INDUSTRIES

CONTENTS

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e o N R T U TR R S 3
INDEPENDENT AUBITOR’S REPOQRT ... o sve aussomwsmessmmusonsmegsmnes s s s s sy i s s s s s s 4
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME i |12
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION oot I3
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FlLOW S i smmenimsnmmsesssn s oo e 55 s 10 s s swsds « s E
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY i s i i i i i iz N

I

(SR )

L

‘AN

S

(U

RPN TS

oo

[RC I SO R (O (S R
- e [ —

GENERAL INFORMATION 6
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT, RISKS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS IN UKRAINE ..
BASIS OFF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o [0

BASIC ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS Lo 19

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE YET .. 29
REVENUWE FROM 'S AIUES e s s o o e K o iy s e i e sl s s s i s amese Do
ADNMINTS TRATTVE E X PN S LS e oo 32
COMMEREGIA L EXPENS ESumumnmmmnmo . . o - S S e s « i s s s b e e i)
OTHER INCOMILE ...consung: se seermsmpsens s ommsmsmannss sesmorsassn s s smiksii o iisios et iy Hand i iosmaism . 33
OTPHER EXPENSES s ot samsssssi o - rises i s Faisies - (s « Vs sis i v 458 53
FINANCIAL EXPENSES ... T e B CRSTESERERIR o e FOGRBA R BRSO AR R B 33
INCOMIE TAX EX PN S IS Lo e 34
PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIRMEN Thane, msimn i i i i i s v S it s i s i )
INVENTORIES e = 30
TRABE ANBD OTHER ACCOUNTS REGEIV ABLE ssummn, m. o 5 omeasmsmsemaamasism? R 30
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. .. .o snrne vnicsssniibisisass & i Sruiiiai  audingiiia i s mani )
SETARE CAPITA L. conesisnimamonims s i 6vmsisss s oo s s s s s s e 3%
LOANS ANL BORROW ING Suesiasistonsesdsmsd i i, sibrin i DR s, St Suiis s BSS
PENSTON BENEFIT LIABTLTTIES e 39

CURRENT PROV IS TON S i e e et 40
ACCOUNTS PAYABLIE ON SETTLEMENTS WITH BUDGET vivmimmmimimmm st s dti
EARNINGS PER SHA R i e e e e e =iy
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS st ins sttt s it s Fo ey el s 8van it - vk 55 1
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES i i 42
FINANGIA L RISK MANAGEMENT POLIC Yor. suwmmmsmmmimssmn i s s i st v A4
FATR VALUE MEASUREMENT i 45
EVENTS AFTER THE REPQRTING DATE s i i, o i i  fuiss mais s i S 16

Page 2 ol 46



_PISCKMZINDUSTRIES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROWAL
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following statement. which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditor’s responsibilities stated
in the independent auditor’s report on pages 4-1 1, 1s made with a view o distinguishing the respective responsibilities
ol management and those of the independent auditors in relation to the consolidated financial statements of the PISC
KMZ Industries (hereinatier - “the Company™) and its subsidiary (hereinaller - “the Group™).

i Management of the Group is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements (hercinalier —
the fancial statements) that present fairly, in all malerial vespects, the financial position of the Group as at
el 31 December 2018, comprehensive income and loss. as well as cash [lows and changes in equity for the year then

ended. in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (hercinaller - “IFRS™),

In preparing the financial statements, the management ol the Group is responsible for:

2 selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently;

el making reasonable assumptions and estimates;

. compliance with relevant IFRS and disclosure of all material departures in notes to the financial statements:
s preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Group will continue in business for the foreseeable Future except when (his assumption is inappropriate.
Management of the Group is also responsible for:

= designing, plementing and maintaining an eflective and sound system of internal controls, throughout
the Group: )

g maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
- position of the Group and which enable them to ensure that the linancial statements comply with 1FRS,
‘_‘ ) taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to saleguard the assets of the Group: and
i ¢ preventing and detecting [raud and other irregularitics.
—
- The consolidated [inancial statements for the year gnded 31 December 2018 were approved on 01 November 2019 on
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e-_%ﬁ.ail: bdo@bdo.kiev.ua

e-mail: dnipro@bdo.com.ua

bedo. 2 BDO LLC

Kyiv
Ukraine, 02121
+38 096 370 30 43 4, Andriya Fabra Str.

+38 056 370 30 45 Dnipro
Ukraine, 49000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the National Securities and Stock Market Commission

and

the Shareholders of Public Joint-Stock Company KMZ Industries

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Qualified opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of the Public Joint-Stock Company
KMZ Industries (EDRPOU code 14311169, address:
2, Sergiya Nigoyana Street, Karlivka town, Poltava
region, 39500; hereinafter - the Company), which
comprise:

B Consolidated balance sheet (Statement of
financial position) as at 31 December
2018;

B Consolidated income statement
(statement of comprehensive income) for
2018;

B Consolidated statement of cash flows
(under direct method) for 2018;

® Consolidated statement of changes in
equity for 2018;

® Notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the
matters set forth in Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our’ report, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2018, its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of
the Law of Ukraine “On accounting and reporting in
Ukraine” dated 16.07.1999 No. 996-XIV in respect
of financial statements preparation.

BDO LLC, a Ukrainian LLC, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the

international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

201-203, Kharkivske Road, 10th floor
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Basis for qualified opinion
Employee benefits

As of 31 December 2018, the Company has calculated pension liabilities arising from a legal obligation to
compensate the Pension Fund of Ukraine with supplementary pensions paid to certain categories of
current and former Group emptoyees (Note 21) without the involvement of a certified actuarial expert.
In our opinion, a relatively high level of uncertainty is inherent in the assessment of pension liabilities.
We have not been able to reduce this risk of uncertainty to an acceptable level through alternative audit
procedures. As such, we were unable to determine whether adjustments to the amount of pension
liabilities that are reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position of USD 193 thousand as of
31 December 2018, and components of the statements of financial position, profit or losses and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows as of 31 December 2018, and for the year ended
31 December 2018.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (further - IESBA Code), and ethical requirements applicable in Ukraine to our audit of
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified opinion.

Other matters

The audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
conducted by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on these consolidated financial
statements dated 23 April 2018.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters Description of audit procedures

Effect of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company applied International Financial " Wereceived the management’s analysis
Reporting Standard 15 Revenue Contracts with of a possible impact of IFRS 15 on the
Customers” (hereafter "IFRS 15") from 1 January Company’s accounting

2018, using a modified retrospective approach. In




Key audit matters

Description of audit procedures

Effect of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

order to account for revenue from contracts with
customers, IFRS 15 provides for a five-step model
and requires revenue recognition in the amount of
consideration, to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. IFRS 15 requires that
judgments be applied and take into account atl
relevant facts and circumstances at each stage of
the model for contracts with customers. The
standard also contains requirements for accounting
for additional costs for the conclusion of a contract
and costs directly related to the contract execution.
In addition, the standard requires more disclosures.

Fulfillment of standard requirements by the
management, in particular, identifying a contract,
identifying performance obligations, determining a
transaction price, involves the use of significant
assessments and judgments. As a result, there is a
possibility of a significant difference in the
estimation and revenue recognition due to the
subjectivity of the estimation.

See Note 7 to these consolidated financial
statements.

We evaluated the Company's internal
controls implemented to timely
identify, validate and ensure the
completeness and adequacy of accrued
revenue in the accounting.

We analyzed the key matters of
recognizing revenue under IFRS 15 that
were used by the Company's
Management to account for revenue in
2018 and to correctly apply the
transitional provisions of IFRS 15.

We reviewed the Company's use of the
five-step revenue recognition model,
which consists of the following steps:
identifying contract with customers,
identifying performance obligations,
determining a transaction price,
allocating the transaction price to
performance obligations and revenue
recognition in the performance of the
obligation

We have analyzed on a sampling basis
the various elements in the executed
contracts with customers to understand
compliance with the contract, and the
availability of separate goods or
services.

We have assessed on a sampling basis
historical business practices in place,
such as discounts, rebates, or -
anticipated promises to determine
whether such practices should be
considered in the context of contract
evaluation.

We analyzed the adequacy and
consistency of disclosure of qualitative
and quantitative information that would
allow users of financial statements to
assess the nature, volume, timing and
possible uncertainty of revenues and
cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.
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Key audit matters

Description of audit procedures
Effect of application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In accordance with the requirements of the
International Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments (hereafter "IFRS 9"), starting
from 1 January 2018, the Company's management
prospectively estimates expected credit losses
associated with receivables from buyers and
customers and recognizes allowance for credit
losses for each reporting date. The estimation of
expected credit loss represents the unbiased and
probabilistic amount determined by measuring the
range of possible outcomes and reflects all
reasonable and verified information about past
events, current conditions, and projected future
economic conditions available at the reporting date.
The degree of accuracy of the management’s
assessment will be confirmed or disproved by the
development of future events that are inherently
uncertain. We have drawn particular attention to
estimating the allowance for credit losses on
receivables from buyers and customers due to the
complexity of the process, the use of significant
management judgments, and the amount of the
allowance may be significant.

See Note 17 to these consolidated financial
statements.

Other information

We have verified the methodology for
estimating expected credit losses in
respect of receivables from buyers and
customers used by the Company's
management;

We have reviewed on a sampling basis
the accuracy of the classification of
receivables balances of buyers and
customers for their further collective or
individual assessment, depending on the
characteristics of credit risk and
overdue period;

We have reviewed on a sampling basis
the ageing of receivables from buyers
and customers to confirm the duration
of the delay in payment;

We have reviewed, on a sampling basis,
payments  of  previous periods,
information on which was used to
calculate the expected credit losses;

We have reviewed the compliance with
the disclosures in Notes to the financial
statements, the disclosure
requirements of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures;

Management of the Company is responsible for the other information prepared as at and for the year

ended 31 December 2018.

Other information includes the following reports:

1. Management report for 2018.

2. Annual information of the issuer for 2018;
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Other information

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact.

Management Report for 2018

The Company prepared and made public the Management Report for 2018 dated 26 April 2019. In the
2018 Management Report, we did not detect a material inconsistency between the other information and
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or whether this information appears
to be materially misstated, and we have not identified any facts that would need to be included in our
independent auditor’s report.

Annual Information of the Issuer for 2018

The Company prepared and made public the Annual Information of the Issuer for 2018 dated 26 April
2019. In the Annual Information of the Issuer for 2018, we did not detect a material inconsistency between
the other information and the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or
whether this information appears to be materially misstated, and we have not identified any facts that
would need to be included in our independent auditor’s report.

Responsibility of management and those charged with governance for the

consolidated financial statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the requirements of the Law of Ukraine “On accounting
and reporting in Ukraine” dated 16.07.1999 No. 996-XIV in respect of financial statements preparation,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appticable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern assumptions as a basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Company.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controt.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,



F

‘e

.}

¥

VLRIV 1 T 9 Y 0 L

IBDO

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on the requirements of other laws and regulations

This information is provided in compliance with the requirements of Article 14, paragraph 4, of the Law
of Ukraine "On Audit of Financial Reporting and Audit Activity” dated 21 December 2017, No. 2258-VIIl on
the provision of additional information based on the results of statutory audit of a public interest entity:

BDO LLC was appointed to perform this statutory audit assignment by the Company's Supervisory
Board on 29 March 2019, in accordance with the Charter. The Report on the Audit of Financial
Statements section of this Independent Auditor's Report discloses the scope of the audit and the
inherent limitations.

Total duration of the statutory audit assignment in respect of the financial statements by BDO LLC,
taking into account the prolongation of authorities that took place, and the repeated appointments,
is one year. For BDO LLC, this assignment is also the first year of BDO LLC's mandatory audit of the
Company's financial statements after the Company has been recognized as a public interest entity in
accordance with the requirements of the Law of Ukraine "On Accounting and Financial Reporting in
Ukraine" dated 16 July 1997. No. 996-XIV.

In the Key Audit Matters section of this report, we disclosed matters that were of greatest importance
during the audit of the current period’s financial statements and which, according to our professional
judgment, should be focused towards. These matters were considered in the context of our audit of
financial statements as a whole and taken into account when forming our opinion on it; in doing so,
we do not express a separate opinion on these matters. During this statutory audit assignment, we
did not identify any other matters relating to the audit estimates other than those mentioned in the
Key Audit Matters section of this report, the information about which we consider appropriate to
disclose in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 4.3 Article 14 of the Law "On the Audit of
Financial Reporting and Audit Activity" dd. 21.12.2017 No. 2258-VIil.

The information contained herein regarding the audit of the Company's financial statements was
agreed with the information in the Supplementary Report for the Audit Committee dated 01
November 2019.

During 2018, BDO LLC did not provide the Company with other services, except for statutory audit
services.

10
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Report on the requirements of other laws and regulations

BDO LLC and the Key Audit Partner are independent to the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(further - IESBA Code). During the audit, we have not identified any additional facts or issues that
could affect our independence and which we would like to draw your attention to. BDO LLC did not
provide the Company with other services prohibited in accordance with the requirements of Article
6 of the Law of Ukraine "On the Audit of Financial Statements and Audit Activities” dated 21 December

2017, No. 2258-VIll for 2018 and from 1 January 2019 to the date of signing this independent auditor's
report.

The audit was performed under the supervision of the Key Audit Partner, Chernovol Vadym M.

Key Audit Partner Chernovol V. M.

Registration number with the Register of auditors a Tes: 101536

For and on behalf of BDO LLC

Director Balchenko S.0.

Kyiv, 01 November 2019

Limited Liability Company BDO. Identification code under EDRPOU: 20197074. Registration number with the

Register of auditors and auditing companies: 2868. Legal address: 4, Andriia Fabra Street, Dnipro, 49070. Tel.
044-393-26-91,

BDO LLC is included in the Register of auditors and auditing companies in section 4 «Auditing companies
entitled to perform statutory audits of financial statements of public interest entities». Link to the Register:
https:Nwww.apu.com.ua/subjekty-audytorskoi-dijalnosti-jaki-majut-pravo-provodyty-obovjazkovyj-audyt-
finansovoi-zvitnosti-pidpryjemstv-shho-stanovljat-suspilnyj-interes/

11



_PISCKMZ INDUSTRIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE | NCOMIE
te vear ended 31 December 2018
usands ol USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2018 2017
Revenue trom sales 7 14 60t Y 98L
st of'sales 8 (114064) 70647
Gross profit 3137 23472
SEULVE expenses Y (1 341) (1082
12 CXPCNSes 10 (773) (570)
rancome I 90 4u
ther expenses 12 (178) (157)
nancial income ; I8 17
Financial expenses |3 . (221 (210
Profit before tax 732 383
Inceme x expenses I, S U1 %) B TN
NET PROFIT ) 589 w6
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not subject to
reclassification in profit or loss in subsequent periods Y (79}
vetuarial expenses ol defined benelit plans ' 2| (8) (28)
Efect ol meome tax 14 g d  Hf
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) N 12 (103
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMI 601 255
Net profit attributable to:
Non-controlling interests =
g 89 S LN
LT PROFIT —L . — )1
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Non-controlling interests -
s——— | 213
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, 601 —

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

(in USI)

Net profitaticibutable to owners of ordinary shares 1o caleulate

base profit 29 0.08 04
Net profitattributable (o owners ol ordinary shures adjusted
aking into account dilution ¢ltect

o
e
<
oo
=

year ended 31 December 2018 were approved on behalf ol the Group managenient

Chiel Accountant

Page §2 ol 40



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

For the yvear ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property. plant and equipment
Intangible assels

Deferred tax agsets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Advances made

[ncome tax paid in advance

Note

Other taxes and levies reimbursable/paid i advance

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITY
Equity

Share capital

Retained earnings

L=[fect ol presentation currency
Total equity

Long-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Pension liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Long-term fiabilitices

Loans and borrowings

Trade and other payabtes
Prepayments received

Current provisions

Other taxes and levies payable
Total current liabilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

vear ended

17
I8

19

PISC KMZ INDUSTRIES

_31.12.2018 31.12.2017
1 470 | 501
5 2

20 4

1 500 1 507
4 349 3877
477 716

69 36

a 9]
229 {73

__ 265 1280
5389 6 091
6 889 7 598
349 349
10579 9 0997
(8 195) (8 157)
2733 2 189
12 16

_ o3 122
205 138

| 646 [ 018
503 Y

| 508 3507
140 103

64 27
3951 3271
6 889 7 508

31 December 2018 were approved on behalf of the Group management

Page 13 or 46
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended 31 December 2018
(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise staled)

Profit hefore tax
Non-ciash adjustments

Amortization charges

Change of atlowance for doubtful debts/ expected credit losses
Income rom the restoration of the tank under the expected credit losses
Loss frony impairment of prepayments made

Loss from disposal of non-current assets

Expenses to charge the provision for unused vacations

foss from disposal of current assels

Exchange loss /(gain). net

Income [rom accounts payable written off

Interest income accrued

Interest expenses accrued

Changes of pension benefit liabilities

Other expenses

Increase of inventories

(IncreaseYdecrease of trade and other accounts receivable
(Increase) / decrease of prepayments made

(Increase) " decrease ol settlements on ather taxes and levies
[ncrease « (decrease) ol trade and other accounts payable
Increase © (decrease) of prepayments recerved

Inerease / (decrease) of pension benelit liabilities

Cash received from operations

Income tax paid

Interest paid

Net cash flow received from / (used in) operations

Cash flow from investment activity

Acquisition of property. plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash flow received from / (used in) investment activity
Cash flow from financial activity

L.oans and borrowings received

LL.oans and borrowings repaid

Net cash flow received from / (used in) linancial activity

Net cash flow for the reporting period
Net foreign exchange difference

Opening balance
Closing balance

PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

Note

L

I8
I8

2018
731

__(2890)

(1 194)
{(183)
(140)

(1 523)

3511
621

(1 049)

34

1280

265

’a

i<,

2007

383

214

86
(1695
25 3
(165
500
[

1 003
(16)
i 219
Wl
tad)

95

¥Car ended 31 December 2018 were approved on behall of the Group managemernit

Srcy/—

Chiel Accountant

e b ol 46
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
lFor the vear ended 31 December 2018
(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise stated)

Effect of

Authorized Retained foreign TOTAIL
(share) capital carnings exchange o
o _ differences
EQUITY, 31.12.2016 - 349 9 705 (8 078) 1976
Net profit - 316 316
Other comprehensive income (loss) . L 24 (79) (103)
Total comprehensive income - 292 (79) 213
EQUITY, 31.12.2017 - ] 349 9997 __(®157) 2189
Effect from application of IFRS 9 (Note 3) i - (57) 57y
ADJUSTED CAPITAL, 01.01.2018 L 349 9997 (8214) 2. N32
Net profit - 589 - 389
Other comprehensive income (loss) - (D 19 |2
Total comprehensive income - 582 19 60t
EQUITY, 31.12.2018 349 10579 (8195) 2733

Chiel” Accountant

L

Notes 00 pages 2 - 40 are an integral part of these consolidated (inancial statements

Page 15 ol 46
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 31 December 2018 and Tor the year then ended
(in thousands o USD. unless otherwise stated)

| GENERAL INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements of PISC KMZ Industries (hereinalter -=*the Company™) and its subsidiary
(hereinalier relerred to as “the Group™) for the year ended 31 Deceimber 2018 were approved for issue in accordance
with the decision ol the General Director of 01 November 2019,

The Group's parent company, PISC KMZ Industries (hereinalter referred to as “the Company™), is a public joint-stock
company. The legal and actual address of the Company: Ukraine, Poltava region. Karlovka, 2, Sergey Nigoyan Street.

As ol 31 December 2018, Dragon Capital Investments Limited was the owner of the controtling interest (100%%) ul
the Company (31 December 2017: 93%).

An ultimate beneficiary is Mr. Fiala Tomash (citizen of the Chech Republic).

The Group also includes a subsidiary *Trading Company Zosya™ (the sole owner of the entity at the beginning and
end ol the reporting period is PISC KMZ Industries). whose principal activity is retail sale of building materials.
houschold chemicals, bedding and tablewire.

2, OPLERATING ENVIRONMENT, RISKS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS IN UKRAINE

The Group operates in Ukraine where the economic situation is unstable and not well in hand. although it has begun
to develop some characteristics of stability. In 2016-2017. Ukraine experienced political and economic difficultics.
The sharp devaluation of the national currency, the decline in real incomes of the population, the decline in foreign
exchange income and capital investments, the capital outflow from the country against the background of annexation
of the Crimea. and the Joint Forces Operations in the eastern part of the country, further decrease of Gross Domestic
Product.

The overall economic tone in Ukraine in 2018 was moderately positive compared (o 2017, GDP contmued o grow
for eleven quarters in a row, while consumption and investment remained the main drivers. Some positive changes
have laken place around the country's risk profile at the end of 2018, In particular, protracted negotiations between
Ukraine and the IME were successfully completed in Q4 2018 resulied in the provision of a new USE 3.9 billion
stand-by program. More (o that, loans ol other financial donors (EU, WI3) were involved.

However. currenthy there is uncertainty about the situation in the castern regions ol Ukraine. in which governmeit
troops are conducting the Joint Forces Operation, as well as in the Autonomous Republic of Crimea. which was
annexed by the Russian Federation.

Structurally, the Group's business operations during 2018 did not change significantly and were not significantiy
affected by political or macroeconomic changes.

Management monitors the development of the current situation and. where necessary and possible. takes measures 1o
minimize any negative impact. Further negative developments, including political,  macrocconomic and/ur
international trade conditions, may make an additional negative impact on linancial performance and condition of the
Group in a way that cannot be determined currently.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of compliance

These consolidated lnancial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reportig Standards
(H'RN).

In general, the Group's accounting policies are consistent and are in line with-the policy applied in previous reporting
year. Some new standards and interpretations have become mandatory for use from | January 2018, Below new and
revised standards and interpretations are disclosed that have been applied by the Group since 1 January 2018,
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands of USD. unless otherwise stated)

RS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group has applied [FRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9). beginning from | January 2018, The standard replaced
previoushy effective TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39), The Group did not restate
the comparative information presented in accordance with IIFRS 39. Fhe dillerence arising from the application of
IFRS 9 was recognized directly in the retained earnings and other equity components at the date of first application

| January 2018. In doing so. the definition of a business model, which contains a financial asset, was made taking into
account the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of the first application of [IFRS 9. The analysis ol whether
the contractual cash Hows for debt instruments are solely payments of the principal amount of the debt and interest
was based on lacts and circumstances that existed at the initial recognition of these assets.

The table below shows the categories of measurement of financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39 and the new
categories that were determined in accordance with IFRS 9 as o' I January 2018,

Measurenent category under Carrying amount under

IAS 39 IFRS 9 AS 39 IFRSY
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trade and other accounts LL.oans and accounts
receivable receivable Al amortized cost 173 [ 04
Loans and accounts
Cash and cash equivalents recetvable Atamortized cosl - 1280 1280
TOTAL 1 453 1384

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Liabilities at amortized  Liabilities at

Loans and borrowings cost amortized cost 1034 1634
Liabilities at amortized  Liabilities at
Trade and other payables cost amortized cost - 309

TOTAL 1 343

L lTect of application of 1FRS 9 requirements regarding classilication and measurement on the carrying amount ol
financial instruments: i
Change of value that had

3 q 01.01.2018
an impact on retained

31.12.2017 under

1AS 39 ; . under IFRS 9

e s garnings BT
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 175 (69) 10
Cash and cash equivalents 1 280 - i 280
TOTAL 1453 (09) 1 384
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings 1034 - 1034
Trade and other payables o 309 o - 309
TOTAL N I 343 o . | 343

The effect o IFRS 9 application is recognized in the opening balance of retained carnings in the statement ol changes
inequity as of 't January 2018:
01.01.2018

Adjustment ol atlowance for expected credit losses (69)
Effect of income tax I
EFFECT OF IFRS 9 APPLICATION (875

IFRS 13 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

[FRS 15 provides for a five-siep model that will apply to revenue Irom contracts with customers, According 1o [FR>
1S, revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects considerations that an entity expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring assets or services 1o a customer. The principles ol [IFRS 15 provide for a more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revenue.

The new standard applies 1o all entities and replaces all previously recognized IFRS recognition requirements. The
standard applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 Junuary 2018, retrospectively in full or with a modified
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(m thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

retrospective approach, The Group decided o startapplying the new standard using a modified retrospective approach
recognizing the total impact ol the first-time adoption of this standard on the date of first application. The Group
recognizes the total effect of the first-time adoption of IFRS 15 as an adjustment of the balance of retained earnings
(or olher equity component. respectively) at the beginning of the amnual reporting period. which covers the date of
first-time adoption. In accordance with this method of transition to the new accounting procedure, the Group should
apply IFRS 15 retrospectively only to contracts that are not executed on the date of first-time adoption, i.e. as ol |
January 2018,

The Group has analyzed the ellfect ol IFRS 15 on accounting policivs and financial statements. wherefore various
revenue streams have been considered. The management believes that changes in accounting policies do not have a
signilicant effect on the linancial statements and do not require adjustment of retained carnimgs as of | January 2018.

Amendments to 1FRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement ol a cash-
settted share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding tax obligations: and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a sharc-
based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity seltled,

On adoption ol amendments. entities are not required to restate information for previous periods; however,
retrospective application is permilted subject to the amendment of all three aspects and adherence to other criteriw
Amendments shall take effect for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, Early application is alfowed.
The amendments will have no impact on the Group’s financial statements,

Amendments 1o RS 4 nsurance Contracts-Application of [FRS 9 Financial Instruwments (ogether with {FRS
Insurance Contrac

These amendments eliminate the problems arising from the application of the new standard relating to limancial
instruments, ['RS 9, before the introduction of 1FRS 17 Insurance Contracts. which supersedes [FRS 4. The
amendiments provide for two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: tefnporary exemption from IFRS 9 and
the overlay approach. The amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments 10 1AS 40 lnvestinent propery.

The amendments clarily the procedure for transfers of property assets (o, or [rom, investment property. A transicr
made when and only when there is an actual change in use — ie. an asset meets or ceases to meet the delintion of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A change in management intention alone docs not
support a transfer. The revised examples of evidence ol'a change in use included in the amended version of TAS 40
are not exhaustive — i, other foris of evidence may support a transfer,

Amendments shall take effect for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, Larly application is allowed
The amendments had no impact on the Group's linancial statements.

[ERS 1 Frst-time adoption of 11"'RS

IFRS | has been amended o remove short-term exemptions dealing with 1FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
IAS 19 Emplovee Benelits and 1FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The reliels provided are no loneer
applicable and had been available to entities for reporting periods that have now passed. This improvement is eilective
for reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2018,

LERIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

HURIC 22 addresses how o determine the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the spot exchange rute
used to translate foreign currency transactions on initial recognition in circumstances when an entity pays or receives
some or all of the foreign currency consideration in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income.

The interpretation states that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the spot exchange rate used o
translate the related asset. expense or income (or part thereol) on initial recognition, is the carlier of:

e The date of initial recognition of prepayments for a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability: and
o The date that the asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is recognized in the inancial statements.

The amendment becomes elfective for annual periods beginning on or after T January 2018, Early application is
permitied. The amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(i thousands ol USD, unless otherwise stated)

LAS 28 lnvestments in Associaies and Joint Ventures

Amendments clarify that a venture capital organization. or a mutual fund. unit trust and similar entities (including
mvestment related Lo insurance funds) may choose whether to account for its investments tn joint ventures and
associates at fair vatue or using the equity method. The amendment also makes it clear that method for each investiment
is 10 be chosen on initial recognition.

This annual improvement must be applied retrospectively for periods beginning on or after | January 2018,

Improvements had no impact on the Group’s financial statements,
Buasis of preparation of the financial statements

These consolidated linancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. except
For “Property. plant and equipment” caption recognized based on the deemed cosl at the date of transition,
Preparation ol the consolidated linancial statements requires management to make assumptions and estimates tha
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure ol contingent labilitics as well as income and
expenses recognized in the financial statements for the reporting period. Due to the inherent uncertainty ol such
estimates, the actual results rellected in future periods may differ from these estimates. The most critical assumptions
and estimates used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated  financial  statements include the financial  stalements  of the Group companies  as
al 31 December 2018, The financial statements are prepared using an agreed accounting policy.

All intragroup balances and transactions. including unrealized gains arising from transactions between the Group’s
entities. were eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated except in cases where the transaction provides suflicient
evidence of impairment of the transferred assets. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of their acquisition.
which is the date of receiving by the Group's control over them, and continue o consolidate until such control is fost.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group companies is the national currency of Ukraine. hryvnia. Transactions in other
currencies are lreated as foreign currency transactions,

The currency ol presentation of financial statements is hryvnia, which is rounded 1o the whole number. uniess
otherwisce indicated.

Going concern asstimptions of the Group

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which involves the sale of
assets and repayment of obligations in the course ol current operating activities.

The Group management cannol prediet all changes that may have an impact on the cconomy as a whole. and what
effects they may have on the financial position of the Group in the [uture. Management believes it is taking all
necessary measures (o support the sustainability and growth of the Group.

These financial statements do not inctude any adjustments that may be made as a result of such uncertainty. Such
adjustments will be reported i they become known and estimable

4. BASIC ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Group has a number of estimations and assumptions about its [uture activities. These estimations and assumptions
are regularty based on past experience ol the management as well as other factors, including such expectations ol the
future cvents. which are considered o be grounded in existing circumstances. In future. actual results might differ
from these estimations and assumptions. The most significant estimations and assumptions. which can be effected by
high risks of adjustments of carrying amounts of assets and liabilities during the next financial year. are sct forth
below.
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PISC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands of USD. unless otherwise stated)

. Useful lite of intangible assets and fixed assets. Depreciation or amortization of intangible assets and fixed
assets is charged during their useful life. The useful life is based on management’s estimates of the period
during which the asset will generate profit. These terms are periodically reviewed for further consistency.

‘ Impairment of property, plant and equipment. The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
anv indication that an assel may be impaired. If there are such indications. the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. To do so. it is required to estimate the cash (lows from the use of the cash-generating unit
to which the assel belongs. Determination of impairment of property, plant and equipment involves the use off
estimates that include, but are not limited (o, the cause, timing and amount of impairment. Impairment is based
on a large number of factors, such as changes in current conditions of competition, expectations ol industry
growth. increase in the cost of capital, changes in future availability of financing, technological obsolescence.
discontinuation of service. current replacement costs and other changes in circumstances that indicate
impairment. The determination of recoverable amount ol a cash-generating unit involves the use ol
management estimates. The methods applied to determine fair value in use include methods based on
discounted cash flows that require the Group to estimate the expected [uture cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also select a suitable discount rate to caleulate the present value of cash flows. When
caleulating the discount rate. the Group uses the weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the currency in
which future cash Mows are denominated. as well as the level of business risks assessed for each group of
assets. These estimates, including the methodologies used, can have a significant impact on the recoverable
amount and. ultimately, the amount ol impairment of property, plant and equipment,

. lnventories. The Group examines net realizable value and demand for its inventories quarterly in order to
ascertain that accounted inventories are assessed at the least ol cost or the net realizable value. The factors thin
may alfect an estimated demand and selling price are computation of time and success of future technological
innovations. competitors™ actions, prices ol suppliers and economic trends.

¥ Allowance for expected credit losses. The Group uses an estimation allowances matrix to calculate expected
credit losses on receivables. Rates ol estimated allowances ave sel based on the number ol days of late payment.
I'he caleutation is based on observable data on delaults in previous periods.

At each reporting date, the Group updates the matrix to adjust past credil loss experience based on lorecast
information. Assessing the relationship between observable historical levels of default, projected economic
conditions and expected credit losses is a significant estimate. The amount of expecled eredit Josses is sensitive
to changes in circumstances and projected economic conditions. The Group's past credit loss experience and
economic lorecast may also not be indicative of the buyer's actual default in the future.

. Pension obligations. The calculation of pension obligations requires the Group’s management 1o use annual
judgments and assumptions about future changes in the amount of remuneration. changes in pension wmounts
iflation rates, exchange rates. e expectancy. and the balance expected in the length of service ol employees.
Total pension obligations are disclosed in Note 23,

. Litigation. The Group makes significant judgments in assessing and recording the provisions and risks of
contingent Habilities arising from litigations and other outstanding claims that are settled through negotiation.
mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as other contingent Hubilities. The judgment s
necessary in assessing the likelihood of satisfaction of the claim against the Group or the occurrence ol an
obligation. as well as in determining the possible amount of the final settlement. Due to the uncertainty mherent
in the valuation process. actual costs may differ from the original reserve estimate. These estimates may change
as new information becomes available, mainly with the support of internal specialists. Review of such estimates
can signilicantly alfect future operating results,
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(i thousands o' USD. unless otherwise stated)

o BASIC ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The basic accounting policies applied by the Group in preparation ol these consolidated financial statements are sel
forth below.

Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Group companics is the national currency of Ukraine, hryvnia (UAH). Transactions in
other currencies are treated as foreign currency transactions and are initially recognized in functional currency at the
rate effective on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are (ranslated into funclional currency at the
exchange rate effective at the reporting date, The exchange rate differences that arise from the calculation of monetary
items or translation of monetary items at rates that differ from the ones al which they were translated at initial
recognition during the reporting period or in previous financial statements are to be recognized in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items in foreign currency, recorded at historical cost. are to be translated al the exchange rale at the
date of transaction. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at [air value are to be translated at the
exchange rate effective at the date of fair value measurement.

Rates ol basic currencies are stated as follows:

_ 31122018 ~ 31.12.2007
USD UAH'USD . 27.6883 28.0672
LUR UAH/ EUR 31,7141 33.4954

Average-weighted rate for the reporting vear

2018 W) i
ush UAH/USD 272016 263947
EUR UAH/ EUR 321341 30,0128

Short-term/long-term classification

An assel (liability) is classified as current il its safe (repayment) is planned, or if"its sale or use is planned within
12 months alter the reporting date. Other assets (liabilitics) ave classified as long-term. Deferred tax assets (labitities)
are classified as long-term.

Property, plant and cquipment

Property. plant and equipment. except for assets acquired before I January 2007, are carried at historical cost less
operating expenses, accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Such costincludes the cost of replacing the pat
of property, plant and equipment recognized as they arise, il they meet the recognition criteria,

Property. plant and equipment acquired before | January 2007 - the date ol transition to 1FRSs - were carried al
deemed costowhich was their fair value as at 1 January 2007,

Depreciation of fixed assets is charged on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the corresponding

assels. The useful Tives of fixed asset groups are as follows:
_Useful life (years)

Land

Buildings and structures [0-50
Production cquipment 3-20)
Vehicles 5-10

Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. The most significant costs of reconstruction and
modernization are capitalized and the replaced items are written off. Gains and losses on the write-down of property.
plantand equipment are recognized in profit or loss us they arise. The cost ol capital repairs is recognized as a separale
component of property. plant and equipment, subject to recognition criteria,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
\sat 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands ol USD . unless otherwise stated)

Fhe Group cupitalizes borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the
qualitving assets as part of the cost of this asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses as incurred.

\iitem ol PPE is derecognized at disposal or in case no economic benefils are expected from its use. The gain or loss
o disposal of the assel (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel) is included in the statement of comprehensive income for the period in which the asset is derecognized.

Ihe asseUs depreciated value, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, il appropriate. al
cach financial year end.

Capital investments are the cost of construction and reconstruction of PPIis. Capital investments at the date of the
linancial statements are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Capital investments are not depreciated
untib the assetis ready for use,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the assets (3-5 years). The estimated usclul lives
and the amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting year.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses al cach reporting date whether there is any indicator that an asset may be impaired. [ any such
indicator exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value, less
costs Lo sell, and its value inuse. A recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the assets that do
not generate cash inflows and are largely independent from proceeds generated by other assels or groups ol assels.
Cash generating unit (CGUY is the smallest identiliable group ol assets that provides for cash inflows which are largels
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an assel exceeds
its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down (o its recoverable amount. [n assessing
the value in use. the estimated future cash Nows are discounted Lo their present value using a pretax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific o the assel. Impairment fos
recoghized i the statement of comprehensive income tor the period in those expense categories constent with the
function of the impaired asset.

SsE G

The Group’s assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indicator that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 11 such indicator exists. the recoverable amount is
calcutated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates usced
o determine the assel's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. I that is the case the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carryiny
amount that would have been determined. net ol depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognized for the asse
in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income lor the period. After such
reversal, future depreciation charges are adjusted to amortize the asset's revised carrying amount, less any depreciated
ue. on regular basis over its remaining useful life,

va

The Group has determined CGU as production and trade.

Financial instruments

During the mitial recognition of fmancial instruments. the Group classifies them and determines the model for furthe
valuation,

The Group classifies debt (inancial assets based on the business model it uses to manage these assets. and the contracl
cash [Tow characteristics triggering the financial instrument.

Financial assets are classificd as follows:

¢ (inancial asscts at amortized cost (AC):
. [inancial assets at faiv value through other comprehensive income (I'VOCI);
2 lnancial assets at Tan value through protit or loss (FVTPL).
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 PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(n thousands of USD. unless otherwise stated)

A financial assel is measured at amortized cost only it it meets both of the following conditions and is not classified
as at fair value through profit or loss:

. itis held within the framework of a business model aimed (o hold assets for contractual cash flows, and

. its contractual terms provide for the occurrence of cash [Tows within the set time limits, which represent the
paviment of exclusively principal and interest (SPPI criterion) for the unpaid part of the principal amount.

During the initial recognition of non-trading capital instruments. the Group may irrevocably choose to reflect further
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income, that is, to classify such instruments as measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). This choice is made on case-by-case basis.

All financial assets that do not meet the criteria for their measurement at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income as described above are measured at fair value through profitor loss,

The Group evaluates the purpose of the asset holding business model at the level of the financial instruments portfolio
as it best reflects the way business is managed and information provided to management staff,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are exclusively payments of principal and interest on the outstanding
part ol the principal ("SPP1" criterion). the Group analyzes the contractual terms of a financial instrument, namely
whether a linancial usset contains a contractual clause that may change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
so that the financial asset will not meet the relative requirement.

Financial assets are reclassitied prospectively only in case of changing the business model within which they are held.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments, as well as financial assets that, at the Group's discretion were initially
classified as those at Taiv value through profit or loss are not subject o reclassification.

Financial labilities are measured at amortized cost, except for:

linancial liabilities measured at fair value through profit/loss:

financial liabilities resulting when transfer of a financial asset is not in compliance with derecognition criteria
or when the continuing involvement principle is applied;

financial guarantee contracts. aval. security:

v credit Liabitities at a rate fower than a market rate;

Initial recognition

bsequent measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value. net of transaction costs.
The costs of acquiring such Tinancial instruments are recorded on expense accounts at the date they are incurred,

All other financial instruments at initial recognition are measured at fair value plus ransaction costs, Transaction costs
and other payments directly related to the recognition of a financial instrument are shown on the discount (premium)
account for this financial instrument, The transaction costs include fees paid to agents. consultants, brokers and
dealers. levies to regulatory bodies, stock exchanges. taxes and state laxes. cle.

Transaction costs and commission income that ave an integral part of the retwrn on a financial mstrument are
recognized in the financial instrument and accounted for when caleulating the effective interest rate for such a financial
imstrument.

AL initial recognition. the Group assesses (rade receivables at transaction price, which is the consideration to which
the Group expects (o be entitled in exchange for the transfer of promised goods or services (o the buyer. excluding
amounts received on behal{ ol thivd parties. i the trade receivable does not contain a significant financing component
(when the contract payment dates give the buyer or seller significant benefits from the sate of products)

For a debt financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. gains or losses are recognized
in other comprehensive income before the derecognition or reclassification date. with the exception of interest income
accrued using the elfective interest method, protfit or loss from its impairment and profits or losses from changes in
the official exchange rate of Hryvnia to foreign currencies. The recognition ofan estimated provision for such an assct
does not change its Luir value,

Pinancial assels al laic value through other comprehensive income are revaluated aller interest and the
discount/premium amortization are accrued and the estimated allowance for credit risk is charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 3t December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise stated)

When the tinancial assel at fair value through other comprehensive income is derecognized, the accumulated
revaluation amount is reclassified from other comprehensive income in profit or loss.

(=

inancial guarantees and credit obligations at a rate lower than a market one at initial recognition are measured at fair
Subseguently. eredit obligations at a rate Tower than market one and financial guarantees are valued at the highest off
e amount of the estimated allowance for expected credit losses and the fair value of the financial liability. fess any

srortization of accumulated income in accordance with the principles for its recognition.

ment

he impairment model is applied to financial instruments that are not measured al fair value through profit or loss:

¢ financial assets being debt tnstruments;
; accounts receivable from leases:
i foan liabilities and liabilities [rom linancial guarantee contracts.

Impairment losses on investments in equity instruments are not recoghized.

Allowances for expected credit losses are to be recognized in an amount equal to either expected credit losses for 12
months or expected credit losses over the lifetime of the instrument.

The Group applies a simplified approach and recognizes allowances for expected credit losses on receivables.
contractual assels and receivables under lease agreements in an amount equal to expected credit losses over the lifetime
of the instrument. regardless of whether there is a significant financing component.

The estimation of expected credit losses reflects the difference between contractual cash flows in accordance with the
contract terms and all cash flows that the Group expects (o receive. Afterwards. the Joss is discounted to the original
effective interest rate of the asset.

The Group divided financial assets on the basis of general credit risk characteristics such as: type of a financial
instrument. credit risk rating, type of debtor or issuer, dates of initial recognition of a financial assel. and applied
historical interest on eredit losses based on the Group's experience inrespect of such losses adjusted for specific factors
for debtors and general economic conditions. ’

Write-ofTs

Write-ofT ol the gross carrying amount of a financial instrument at the expense of the provision charged is recoumzed
alter iU's recognized as bad, the existence of the allowance for expected credit fosses. and simultaneous fulfiimant of
other prerequisites defined by the requirements of the current legislation of' Ukraine and the internal regulations ol the
Group.,

Derccognition and contract modilication

Financial assets are derecognized whenever:

J the rights to cash Mows determined by the terms of the financial asset contract expire;
. the transfer ol a financial asset meets the derecognition criteria:
: write of the financial asset against the provision.

The control of the translerred asset is not available if'a party to whom the asset is translerred has the real ability to
sellit o an unrelated third party and may sell it unilaterally without the need to impose additional restrictions on sueh
fransler,

Hthe control over a linancial assel is not retained. such an asset is derecognized: otherwise. if the conirol over the
financial assel is retained. it is recognized to an extent of the continuing involvement therein,

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial asset measured at derecognition date and the amount of
consideration received (including the value of the new asset received less the liability amount) is recognized as incone
or expense from derecognition.

The financial liability or part thereof is derecognized if such liability is settled. canceled or expired.

Anv expense or considerations are the income/expense from derecognition if the debt financial tiabilities exchange or
changes in the terms ol a linancial Hability are reflected in the accounting as a repayment of the original [inancial
liability and the recognition ol a new financial liability.

Page 24 ol 46



AT 1 T S 1 1 S S 0 8 4 S 4 S

PISC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
tin thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

Fhe difference between the carrying amount ol repaid or transierved (o another party linancial liability (or part thereol)
and the amount of the consideration paid is income/expense from derecognition.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received (o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement assumes that the sale ol an assets or
transfer of a liability is made whether on a principal market for such assets or liabilities or when there is no principal
market, at the most advantageous market for such assels and labilities. The Group should have an access
to the principal or the most advantageous market. '

Fair value ol an assct or a Hability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
(he asset or Hability. assuming that market participants act in their economic best interests.

A Tair value measurement of o non-financial asset takes into account a marke( participant’s ability lo generale
economic benelits by employing the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would employ the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group applies such valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which data are available.
sullicient lor measuring Lair value, using the relevant observable inputs to the maximum extent and using unobservable
inputs to the minimum extent.

Allassets and liabilities whose fair value is estimated or disclosed in the financial stalements are classified as described
below under the fair value hierarchy based on the towest level inputs that are significant to the [air value measurcment
in general:

g Level 1 — Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
. Level 2 - Valuation techniques, in which significant inputs for fair value measurement are inputs relating Lo

tower level hierarchy observable for the asset or hability, either directlyor indirectly

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques, in which significant inputs for fair value measurement are inputs relating (o
lower level hierarchy unobservable for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilitics that are revalued in the fancial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines

the need lor their transler between levels of the hierarchy sources, re-analyzing the classification (based on the mpiis

ol the lowest level that are significant to the fair value measurement in general) at the end of each reporting peried.

Inventoriey

fnventories are valued at the fower of the cost or net realizable value. The net reahzable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and (he estimated costs of sales. The
cost ol inventories is calculated on an average cost basis and takes into account the cost ol acquiring inventorics.
delivering them (o a location and bringing them to their current state. The cost of inhouse inventories and the cost off
work in progress includes the corresponding part of overhead costs.

The cost ol disposal of inventories is estimated as follows: finished goods — under the identified cost of the respective
item ol inventories. Tor matenals and other types ol inventories — under the average cosl.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cush equivalents include deposits with banks, cash and deposits with original maturity of less than three
months.

Cash includes cash and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents include short-term liquid investments (with a maturity
of less than 90 days) that can be converted freely into known amounts of cash and are exposed to low risk ol changes
in value. Cash equivalents are carried at fair value,

Lease

A lease is classified us o finance lease 100 ransters Lo the lessee all material visks and rewards of ownership. Operating
lease is any lease other than [inance lease. Assets under finance leases are recognized as assets at their fair value at
the lease inception. or at the present value of the minimum lease pavments, il less. The corresponding labilities 1o

the lessor are recognized in the statement of financial position as [inancial lease labilities. Lease payments are
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apportioned between the Tinancial cost and the reduction ot the outstanding tiability so as to ensure a constant pertodic
rate ol interest on the batance of Tiability.

Financial expenses are recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless they are
directly related to a qualifying asset. In doing so, they are capitalized in accordance with the Group's general policy
ol toans and borrowings accounting.

Contingent rents are recognized as an expense in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease income or expense is recognized in the stalement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another
systematic accounting method reflects more accurately the nature of the benefits of the leased asset.

In 2017, the Group neither accepted nor transferred assets to operating and finance leases.
Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity.

Employee benefits. Pension contribution liabilities

The Group makes contributions for its employees to the State Pension Fund of Ukraine. Contributions are calculated
as a percentage of the current gross wage and are expensed in the period in which they were incurred. Additional
pensions and other post-employment benefits are included in payroll and related accruals in the consolidated income
statement.

Employee benefits. Pension benefit liabilities :

The Group participates in the mandatory state defined benefit pension plan that provides for retirement benelits tor
employees working in harmful and difficult conditions. Liabilities recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position for defined benelit plans are the present value of expected future payments necessary to seltle debts
arising from services provision by an employee during current and preceding periods. Pension benefit liabilities are
calcutated annually.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilitics are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless itis probable that an outliow
ol economic resources embodying economic benelits will be required to settle the obligation and it can be reasonably
estimated. They are disclosed unless the possibility of'an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 1s remote,

During 2017-2018. the Group had no such liabilities.
Borrowing costs

Ihe Group capitalizes borrowing costs divectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assels as part ol the value of this asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Provisiony

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a vesult ofa past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate ol such obligation can be made. Where the Group expects some or all provisions to be reimbursed.
for example. under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relaling to any provision is recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income net of any reimbursement. 11 the effect ol the time value of money is material. provisions ire
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects and. where appropriate. the risks inherent to the labilitv. Where
discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage ol time is recognized as [inance costs.
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Revenne from contracts with customerys

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) it satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised product
or service (i.e.. an assel) 1o the customer. The asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of such an
assel.

Control over the assel means the ability to control its use and receive virtually all other associated benelits. Control
includes the ability to prohibit other business entities from managing the use of the asset and receiving associated
benelits. Benefits from the assel are potential cash Tows (cash inflows or outflow of cash savings) that can be oblained
directly or indirectly.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized based on the five-step model as follows:

i Step 1: Identifying the contracte:

i Step 2: Identifving of performance obligations within the conlract;
g Step 3: Determining the transaction price;

. Step 41 Allocating the transaction price to performance obligations;
8 Step 5: Revenue recognition.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Group sells the goods to the customer.

The Group considers whether there are other promises during the sale that are separate performance obligations for
which part of the transaction price must be allocated (such as warranties). In determining the price of a sales
transaction. the Group takes into account the effects of a variable cosl. the existence of significant {inancing
components. non-cash compensations and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

(i) Variable consideration

[ the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount. the Group estimates the wmount ol
consideration to which the entity is entitled in exchange for transferring the premised goods or services (o a castome

An amount ol consideration can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds. credits, price concessions. incentives.
performance bonuses. penalties or other similar items. The promised consideration can also vary il the Group’s
entitlement (o the consideration is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event. For example. un
amount of consideration would be variable if either a product was sold with a right of return or a lixed amount is
promised as a performance bonus on achievement of a specified milestone.

The Group includes in the (ransaction price some or all of the variable consideration only il'it is highly probable that
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is basically resolved. there will be no significant
reversal ol the amount of recognized cumulative income.

Right of return

Inaccordance with regulations. the clienthas a right of return the goods within the established term. The Group applics
the most likely amount method to assess goods that are not subject to return, since this method better predicts the
amount ol variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. In respect of goods that are expected (o be
returned. the Group recognizes a refund liability instead of income. The right to return an asset (and a corresponding
adjustment to the cost ol sales) is recognized for the right to returny the goods from the client.

(i) Significant financing component

As a practical expedient. the Group needs not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of o
significant nancing component if the Company expects. al contract inception, that the period between when the
Group transfers a promised good or service 1o a customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be

one vear or less.

Adjusting the promised amount of consideration to account for a significant financing component, the Group uses the
discount rate that would be applied in a separate financing operation between an entity and its customer at contract
inception. This rate will reflect the credit characteristics of a party receiving financing under the contract, as well as
lateral or security provided by the customer or company. including contractual assels translerred.

any co
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Guarantees

1T the customer has the opportunity to purchase a guarantee separately (for example, because the guarantee or ils price
i negotiated separately), then this guarantee is a separate service, since the Group promises 1o provide a service (0
the customer in addition to the guarantee provided by the goods manufacturer. In such circumstances, the Group
accounts for (he promised guarantee as performance obligations and allocates a part of the transaction price o such
performance obligation,

Revenue from the provision of such a guarantee is recognized over time,
Presentation

I any part of the contract is executed, the Group reflects the contract in the statement of financial position as a
contractual asset or contractual liability, depending on the ratio between the Group's fulfillment of its obligation under
the contract and the payment made by the customer. The Group reflects any unconditional rights o consideration
separately as a receivable.

If the customer pays consideration or the Group is entitled to an unconditional amount of consideration (i.c.
receivables). the Group, before transferring goods or services to the customer, must reflect the contract as a contractual
obligation on the carlier of the payment date or the date when the payment must be made.

[I'the Group transters goods and services (o the customer before the customer pays consideration or before the payment
date for such consideration. the Group shall record a contract as a contractual assel, except for any amounts recorded
as receivables. The contractual asset is the Group's right to the consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to the customer.

The right to consideration is unconditional. il only the expiration ol time is necessary for maturing ol such
consideration. The Group recognizes receivables i it has a present right to pay, even though this amount may be
repavable in future. The Group accounts for receivables in accordance with IFRS 9.

Income rax

current tax

Current tax assets and liabilitics for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected (o be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used Lo compute the amount are those that aiv
enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date,

Deflerred tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance-sheet liability method on temporary dilferences at the reporting
date  between the carrying amounts ol assets and liabilities (for financial reporting purposes) and their value in Lix
base. Deferred tax labilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except for:

2 where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or hability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the (ransaction affects neither
the accounting profit, nor taxable profit or loss; and

g in respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing ol the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled by the parent compitiiy
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the foresecable Tuture,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax benelits and
tax losses il there is a likelihood that non-taxable prolit will be available against which a negative temporary difference
can be applicd and the carry-forward of unused tax benefits and tax losses can be utilized, except when:

. where the deterred tax assel relating to the negative temporary difference arises from the initial recognition ol
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. al the time of the transaction. aliects
neither the accounting profit, nor taxable profit or loss; and

0 in respect ol the negative temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures. deferred tax assets are recognized only (o the extent that it is probable that
the temporary dilferences will reverse in the Toresceable future and taxable profit will be available againsl
which the tempovary ditferences can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each date of preliminary combined statement of financial

position and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available (o allow
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all or part ol the deferred tax assets Lo be reatized. Unrecogmzed cardier deferred tax assets are revalued at cach date
of preliminary combined statement of financial position and recognized (o the extent that it has become probable tha
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be realized.

Deterred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or (substantially enacted) at
the preliminary combined statement of (inancial position date. Income tax relating lo items recognized directly
in equity is recognized in equity. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are o be offset. if'a legally enforceable
right exists 1o set ofF current tax assels against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes imposed by the
same taxation authority on the same entity.

When calculating the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities the Group used the tax rates that are expected 1o be
in force during the reversal of temporary differences that led to the related deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The profit tax rate in 18% was applied to calculate the income tax of the assel management company.

0. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE YET

The Group did not apply the following IFRS and Interpretations of IFRS and TAS that were issued, but did not become
effective yet:

TERS 16 Leases.

[FRS 16 replaces TAS 17 Leases. IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. SIC-15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS
16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement. presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheel model similar to the accounting for linance leases under TAS
17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of “low-value™ assels (e.g.. personad
computers) and short-term leases (L.e., leases with a lease (¢rm of 12 months or less)., At the commencement dale ol o
lease. a lessee will recognize a liability o make lease payments (i.e.. the leasg liability) and an asset represcnting e
right 1o use the underlying assel during the lease term (i.e.. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separateiy
recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use assct.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of cerlain events (e.g.. i change
the lease term, a change in fulure lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to delermine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the ainount ol the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under 1IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 7. Lessors wiil
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between bwo types
ol leases: operating and finance leases. {FRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under TAS 17.

[FRS 16 15 effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019, Early application is permitted, but not
carlier than the date ol application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. "The lessee has the right (o
apply this standard using a retrospective approach or a modilied retrospective approach. The transitional provisions
provide for certain exemptions.

Currently. the Group assesses the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to apply the new standard al the respective effective
date.

Amendments 10 1FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and [AS 28 [nvestments in Associates and Joinl Ientures

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Yenlure.

The amendments address the conflict between RS 10 and TAS 28 in dealing with the lass of control of a subsidiary
that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from
the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. 1s recognized in full, Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business. however is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors™ interest in the associate or joint

venture.
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The TASB has deferred the elfective date of these amendments indefinitely, but early adoption is permitted

prospectively

[FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatinents

Whenever requirements of tax legistation are unclear in relation Lo a particular operation or to specific circumstances,
the main criterion is whether the probability is high that the tax authority will agree with the tax claims interpretation
chosen by the Company.

I (the answer is positive, the Group shall reflect the same amounts in the financial and tax reporting and consider the

need o disclose the existence of uncertainty. 11 the answer is negative, the amount reported in the financial statenients
will difTer from the amount in the tax return, because it is estimated taking into account the existing uncertainty.

To reflect this uncertainty. one ol the following two estimation methods is used, depending on which one will allow
1o a high accuracy to predict the outcome of the uncertainty:

] the most likely amount, or

g the expected value.

The Interpretation also requires that judgments and estimates that have been formed by the Company were reviewed
in the event of a change in facts and circumstances - for example, due (o a tax audit or actions taken by the tax
authorities, subsequent changes to the tax rules, or after the expiration of the period during which the tax authority has
the right to verify the correctness of the tax calculation.

The interpretation is applied to annual periods beginning on or after T January 2019: early application is permitied,
Currently the Group is assessing the impact of [FRIC 23 application on the consolidated linancial statements.

Amendments (o 1485 19 Emplovee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setilement.

The amendments consider the accounting in cases where plan amendments, curtailment or settlement occur during the
reporting period. The amendments clarify that if plan amendments, curtailiment or settlement occur during the
reporting period, an entity should:

2 determine the cost ol the current period’s services in relation to the remainder of the period after the pla
amendments. its curtailment or [ull settlement based on the actuarial assumptions used Lo revalue the et
ltability (asset) of the delined benelit plan, reflecting considerations offered by the plan, and plan assets altci
the event:

! determine the net interest rate for the remainder of the period after the plan amendments. its cartailment or fuli
seltlement, using: net liabilities (asset) of the defined benelit plan, reflecting considerations offered by the phu
and the plan assets after the event, and the discount rate used to revalue the net liability (asset) of the delined
benefit plan.

The amendments also clarify that an entity must first determine the cost of past service or profit or loss [rom the
settlement ol oblivations. without taking into account the impact of the assel's limiting value. This amount is
recognized in profit or foss. Afterwards, an entity must determine the effectol'the limiting value of the assets afler the
plan amendments, its curtailment or full settlement. Changes in this effecl, except for amounts included in the net
interest. are recognized in other comprehensive income.

These amendments apply to the plan amendments. its curtailment or full settlement that occurred on or alter the start
of the first annual reporting period beginning on or alter | January 2019, Early application is allowed. These
amendments will apply only to future plan amendments, curtailment or full settlement.

RS 17 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 15 4 new financial reporting standard Tor insurance contracts that addresses the recognition and measurement.
presentation and disclosure of information, 1FRS 17 will replace TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. which was issued in
2005, 1FRS 7 applies to all types ol insurance contracts (lile and non-life insurance. direct insurance and reinsurance).
regardless ol the Lype of an entity, as well as (o certain guarantees and financial mstruments with discretionary
participation terms. There are some exceptions to the scope.

The primary objective of IFRS 17 is to provide a model of accounting for insurance contracts that is more elfective
and consistent for insurers. Unlike the requirements of 1FRS 4, which are based fargely on previous focal accounting
policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive accounting model for insurance contracts. covering all relevant
accounting aspects,
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RS 17 is based on a general model supplemented by the Tallawing:
. Certain modifications Tor direct investment msurance contracts (variable consideration method).
. Simplificd approach (premium-based approach) mainly for short-term confracts.

IFRS 17 becomes effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative information
being required. Early application is permitted provided that the entity also applies IFRS 9 and [FRS 15 on the date of
first-time adoption of IFRS 17 or earlier. This standard is not applicable (o the Group.

Annual I1FRS Iimprovements (2015 - 2017 cycle)
Itis envisaged that the following amendments will have no significant impact on the Group’s linancial statements:

. Amendments to the Conceplual Reporting Framework (issued 29 March 2018 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after I January 2020).

. Amendments to [FRS 3 Definition of a Business (Issued on 22.10.2018 and effective in relation to acquisitions
since the beginning ol the annual reporting period beginning on or after | January 2020)

J Amendments to TAS 1 and 1FRS 8 Definition of Materiality (issued on or after 31.10.2018 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020)
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7. REVENULE FROM SALES
Income from sales ol the Group is stated as [olows:

Revenue from sales of finished goods
wrain silo
chain buckets and carviers
orann dvers
over Silo overpasses
service kits for main produets
other finished goods

Revenue [rom sale of other products, goods, services
waorks, services and assembling of products
other goods, workys cand services

TOTAL
Sales markets of the Group’s products ave stated as lollows:

Ukraine
Kazakhstan
Russian Federation
Romania

Moldova

TOTAL

PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

2018 2017
14115 9759
6 6610 3 7l
384 /340
61> YN
333 4013
191 230
1282 | 089
486 230
343 163
B2 S 4
14601 9989

2018 2017
14 566 9 9806

21

N .

2 o

14 601 9980

During 2018, the amount of contractual obligations on prepayments received. recognized in the

revenue, was USD 12 197 thousand.

8. COST OF SALES
Cost ol sales of the Group is stated as tollows:

Raw materials and supplies

Salary and accruals

Transportation expenses

Depreciation of production equipment

Assembling ol (inished goods

Fuel and electric energy

Other overhead production expenses

Changes ol balances of finished goods and work in process
TOTAL

O ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrative expenses of the Group included:

Salary and accruals

Outsourced services

Fuel and electric energy

Tax expenses, other than income tax
Travelling and entertarment costs
Amortization charges

Lease

Other expenses

TOTAL

amount ol sales

2018 2017

(9 480) (6 860}

(1 263) (1029)
(242) (21

(193) (184

(54) (2006)

(285) (139}

(48) (18)

S| (< SE— )
o (rded)  (70647)
018 2017

(869) (713

(196) (159)

(98) (82)

(42) (42)

(13) (23)

(12) (22)

(17 s

02  El)

(1 341) _(1082)
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COMMERCIAL EXPENSES

expenses of the Group included:
2008 2007

ceruals (339) (314

i Costs (184) (150)

< and marketing costs (95) (62)

(49) -

(20) ;

2 eXpenses (18) (135)

s Clearance (|7) (5)

eC of distribution related equipment (5) (4)

ET EXPEenses _ (40) (20)
TOTAL - (773) (576)

1. OTHER INCOME

come ol the Group includes:

2018 2017
cversal oballewancee for expected eredit losses (Note 17) 48 -
te-ofl ol accouns pavable 10 32
ther income o 32 17
FOTAL 90 49
12. OTHER EXPENSES
her expenses ol the Group are stated as [ollows:
2018 2017
Loss ramompairment ol prepaviments made (4H0) (193
Surpluses  (shortages) (33) 7
Setary and aceruals (22) (23)
Exchange loss 20 (O
Dutsourced services () ()
Loss from disposal ol non-current assets () (2)
Expenses (o support social infrastructure 9) (33)
Depreciation ol social infrastructure objects (5) )
Fines - (13
Uiher expenses o (23) _ (19)
TOTAL _ (178) (157)
I3 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Financial expenses of the Group are as follows:
L0820
fntereston loans and borrowings (140) (1:48)
mierestexpenses from pension benelit Habilities (Note 21) (75) (18
Exchange loss e ey T 4y
TOTAL (221 2y
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The components of income tax expenses [or the reporting year are as follows:

Current income tax expense

Deferred income tax gains / (expenses)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Expenses from income tax in relation to profitare presented as fotlows:

Profit before tax

Expenses rom income tax according to current rate (18%)
Tax effect on non-taxable items

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

FPISC KV INDU ST RIS

s 2017
(150) (107)
RS A%
{1a3) (67)

2018 2017
72 383

(132) (69)

(LD R
(143 (67)

Differences between 1FRS and Ukrainian tax legislation resull in temporary differences between the carrying amounl
ol assets and habilities Tor the purpose of preparation of financial statements and the basis for caleulating the income

taXs

Tax effect ol changes in temporary dilferences that is reflected in the statement of linancial position is presented

below:

Property. plant and equipment
Inventories

Prepayments made

Trade and other accounts
receivable (Note 3)

Pension bene it abilities
Provisions

NET DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS 7 (LIABILITIES)

Property. plant and equipment
Inventories

Prepayments made

Trade and other accounts
receivable

Pension benelit liabilities
Provisions

NET DEFERRED TAN
ASSETS / (LIABILETIES)

Reported in

Effect of

31122018 Profit Other foreign 31.12.2017
comprehensi Capital exchange
(loss) : B .
ve inconme 5 differences - -
(51) i - - {58
20 - - - | 19
13 8 - - - ',7
0 (23) - 12 7
35 I | - | 22
o 2 o p—— - - (1) (3
- 25 7 1 12 1 A4
o Reportedin o oo . Effectof
31.12.2017  Profit Other loneigy 31.12.2016
comprehensi  Capital exchange
(loss) ; Y )
___veincome differences
(58) 1] - - | (90)
19 (3) - - (" 23
7 h - - (h -
17 | - - |6
22 0 5 - (h 12
(51 S 1 i e
.3 40 5 A (2) 89
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

(in thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

[5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and

Production

Construction in

Historical cost - : Vcehicles TOTAL
buildings equipment progress

Asat 31 December 2016 1710 I 369 102 10 3101
Acquisitions 9 128 56 9 199
Transfers - 7 - - 7
Disposals - (1 (3) 9 5
Lftect of presentation currency {55) _(47) G R A A N Uz
Asat 31 December 2017 664 | 453 147 I g 473
Acquisitions - - - 161 161
Other additions - - - 16 e
Transfers o0 134 34 (168) -
Disposals (20) (28) (5) 5 (53)
Effect of presentation currency 23 13 ! | 38
As at 31 December 2018 1 667 1572 177 21 3437
Accumulated depreciation Land and Production . Construction in N

. . A 3 Vehicles IroTAL
and impairment _buildings cquipment progress -
Asat 31 December 20106 ) (785) (795) (43) - {1 623)
Depreciation for the period (93) (109 (10) = (212
Disposals - | 2 - j
L [fect of presentation currency 27 28 3 -
As at 31 December 2017 (851) (875) o (48) L e
Depreciation [or the period (81) (123) e
Disposals 7 32 - i
Effect of presentation currency ) (0)
As al 31 December 2018 (934 (974) -
Carrying amount
Asat 31 December 2016 925 574 59 10 I 568
Asal 31 December 2017 813 578 99 I S0
As at 31 December 2018 733 398 118 21 L4746

The Group has no contractual obligations for the acquisition. construction of fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the book value of the Group™s property. plant and equipment. being the collateral ol foans
and borrowings. 1s USD 848 thousand, as at 51 December 2017 - USD 1 356 thousand (Note 20).

Asat 31 December 2018, the historical cost ol fully depreciated assets still i use was USD 570 thousand, and s of
31 December 2017 - USD 739 thousand.

The carrving amount of social infrastructure and other non-productive assets as ol 31 December 2018 was USD 1 425
thousand. as o' 31 December 2017 - USD 48 thousand.

During 2017-2018. no impairment losses were identilied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the vear then ended
(in thousands ol USD, unless otherwise stated)

16, INVENTORIES

As al the reporting date, inventories of the Group included:
_31.12.2018  31.12.2017

Work in process 20675 2443
Raw materials and supplics 1198 1071
Finished products 182 276
Semi-finished products and components ) 202 130
Other inventories N 1§ R [ 5
[nventories without taking impairment into account 4 458 3984
Provision for impairment of inventories (109) (107)
TOTAL 4349 5877

17, TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at the reporting date, trade and other accounts receivable ol the Group are stated as follows:
30122018 31.12.2017

Trade receivables 145 128
Other receivables 120 101
Lxpected credit losses ' (36) -
Provision for doubtful debts s A (50)
TOTAL 229 173

Changes in the provision for impairment of receivables are stated below:

2017

OPENING BALANCE ’ (51)

Impatrment loss (6)

Use ol provision for doubtiul debts G/

Fllect ol presentation curreney e Y
CLOSING BALANCE (30)

018

Opening balance (56)

Adjustment of allowance for expected credit toss 69

ADJUSTED OPENING BALANCE (125)

Reversal ol allowance for expected credit loss (Note 1) 48

Use of provision 14
EATect of presentation currency N

CLOSING BALANCE o 30)

Maturity of trade and other accounts receivable is stated as follows:

R g2

Total Expected eredit  Coefficient of expected

valwe  losses  creditlosses

Up 1o 30 days ol delay i payment ! (20) 0.36%

Up to 31-90 days of delay in payment I ) 12.09%

Up 1o 91-180 days ol delay in paviment | - 39.39%

Up o 18 1= 360 davs of delay in payment 24 -

Over | year ol defay in payment I & S {14) 00,00
TOTAL 265 36 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As alt 31 December 2018 and (or the year then ended
(in thousands ol USD, unless otherwise stated)

Undue
Due
due 1 to 30 days
e wpr fo 90 days
due wp to 180 deavs
chiee up 1o 365 days
over 365 davs

TOTAL TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

All receivables are denominated in UAH,

PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

3122017

I8
10

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the share of the largest receivables is approximately 51% and 32% of the total

carrving amount of trade receivables. respectively.

I8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are slated as follows:
Cash on deposit accounts
Cash on current accounts

TOTAL

Currencies of cash and cash equivalents of the Group are as follows:

UAH UAH
LEUR EUR
TOTAL

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

181 1 069
84 200
20 Vasy,
31122018 31.12.2017
263 1278
p 0
s o

As ol 31 December 2018, deposits were mainly represented by short-term deposits with a term of 6 days at Kredobank
Bank in Ukrainian hryvnias and at an interest rate ol 9% per annum with a maturity of 3 January 2018,

As ol 31 December 2017, deposits were mainly represented by short-term deposits with a term ol'6 days at Kredohanik
bank in Ukrainian hryvnias and at an interest rate of 9% per annum with a maturity of 3 January 2018.

Income from deposits and balances in current accounts is recognized in profit or loss in financial income.

Information on the credit rating of banks (Moody's) on which accounts the Group has balances of cash and cash

equivalents is presented below:

Al

A3

Caal

Caal

No ratings
TOTAL

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

e e
|

- 2

6 245

s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
\sat 31 December 2018 and for the vear then ended
Cii thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

ﬁ

_ PISCKMZ INDUSTRIES

19. SHARE CAPITAL
Brecomber. share capital was presented as follows:
. 3n12.z2018 o Shizao17 -
Ownership Ownership
Cos
_share, % SO0 share, % _
= tonvestments 100% 349 93%
e - - 5%
g o - - 2% 6
TOTAL 100% 349 100% 349
athorized capital consists of 7 039 082 ordinary shares with the par value of 0.25 Ukrainian hryvnia
~U17-2018 and priorto the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Group neither
lividends.
2 LEANS AND BORROWINGS
ot the Group included:
31122018 31122017
=-term loans and borrowings |2 1o
tloans and borrowings I 646 LO18
e particidar
current portion of fong-ierin loans /1 2N
current laans 1633 by
interest liabilivies > . )
FOTAL 1 658 )
ns and conditions for loans repayments are as follows:
31.12.2018 312007
Interest Maturity Liabilities Interest Marturity Liabilities
1.1 SN ] | O . rale  ferm g S
ISC Kredobank 10.60% Sep. 2019 1069 16.10% Sep.2018 Y84
SC Agricole Bank 18.50% Jul.2019 565 c - -
S Acricole Bank 8.90% Nov.2(2() o 8.,90% Nov.2020 24
PISU Credi Agricole Bank 14.29% May 2021 7 . - -
ISC Tredi Agricole Bank 7.00% Jan.2019 I 0,90% Jan.2019 I
SO Credi Agricale Bank - - - 11.90% Jul.2018 )
FUSU Credi Agricole Bank - - 5 16.00% Nov.201§ 3
FOTAL - - 1 658 - - 1034
loans and borrowings are received in UAH,
Y1 December. collaterals of loans and borrowings were as follows:
31122008 31022017
Land and buildings 382 6078
Production equipment 408 585
Vehictes SR 93
FOTAL 848 t 356
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~ PISC KMZ INDUSTRIT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 31 December 2018 and for the yvear then ended
(i thousands of USD. unless otherwise stated)

Changes of Tiabilities resulted from financial activity are stated as follows:

2018 2017
OPENING BALANCE 1034 753
Cash fTows from [inancial activity
Cash mtlows 3511 2 140
Cash outtiows (2 890) (1 824
Other
Interest accrual 146 -
Interest paid (operaling activity) ; (146) -
Effect of presentation currency 9 (41
CLOSING BALANCE 1658 1034

21. PENSION BENEFIT LIABILITIES

The Group contributes (o the Pension Fund of Ukraine as delined by the set rates from the amount of accrued wages
to the employees of PISC KMZ Industries. Such expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
payroll is accrued. The Group also has a legal obligation to compensate the Pension Fund of Ukraine for the amount
of supplementary pensions paid (o certain categories of current and former employees of the Group. The costs
associated with this plan are caleulated using the projected unit method of those employees who are eligible Tor such
payments. All pension plans in Ukraine are not sccured. Liabilities for defined benelit plans are calculated using
approved actuarial techniques.

As at 31 December 2018, the defined benefit plan covers 31 existing employees and 22 former employees receive
such payments (as at 31 December 2017 —— 32 employees and 30 employees, respectively).

Main assumptions used to define pension benefit liabilities are as [ollows:

Changes of the present value of defined benefit labilines are stated as follows:

2018 2017
COST OF LIABILITIES AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 122 06
Interest expenses 75 48
Remunerations paid (13) (10)
Actuarial expenses 8 28
Effect of presentation currency [ A .0
COST OF LIABILITIES AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 193 122
Main assumputions used to define pension labilities are stated as follows:
2018 2017
Discount rate 19.0% 13.5%
Expected safary growth 5.0% 3,0%
Impact on pension benelit liabilities from changes in main assumptions is as fotlows:
s 0
Increase/decrease ol discount rate by 1% (16)/14 (t/i2
Increase’decrease ol satary by 1% 201/18) 15/(13)
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asat 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(i thousands of USD, unless otherwise staled)

(893
[

TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLLE
As at the reporting date, tade and other accounts payable are stated as follows:

I'rade accounts pavable
Other accounts payable
Payables for personnel
TOTAL

Currencies ol pavables are as follows:

31.12.2018  31.12.2017

UAH UAH 470 300
EUR EUR — 123 8
TOTAL 593 309

As ol 31 December 2018 and 2017, the largest creditor's share is approximately 23% and 29%, respectiveiy. of the
total carrying amount of (rade payables.

23, CURRENT PROVISIONS
Current provisions ol the Group are stated as follows:
Provisions lor unused vacations

Other provisions
TOTAL

24, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ON SETTLEMENTS WITH BUDGET

Accounts pavable on settlements with budget are stated as follows:
S3112.2018 31122017

Value added (ax . 27 230

Other taxes and levies 23 23

Social insurance 14 15

TOTAL 04 274
25, FARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the holders of the Parent’s
ordinary shares by the weighted average number ol ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit attributable o the holders of the Company's
ordinary shares (aller adjusting for interest on convertible preferred stock ) by the werghted average number ol ordinan
shares outstanding during the vear plus the weighted average number ol ordinary shares to be issued in case of
conversion of all potential diluted ordinary shares.

The welehted average number ol ordinarvy shares outstanding equals the number of shares outstandimg at the beginning
ol the period mercased by the number of shares issued during the period, net ol the number of'shares purchased during
the period by the company and multiphed by the weighted temporary ratio. The weighted ratio is defined as the fraction
ol the number of davs the shares are in cireulation by the total number of days in the reporting period.

The weighted average number of outstanding shares based on the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares is
calculated as the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued alter the conversion ol all dilutive potential ordinary shares mto ordinary shares

Page 40 ol 40



1 VA ST T U U T 4

L

U U T T A O A T L T\ L1 L U L T T

- L IC RMZINDUS TRIT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise stated)

2018 2017
Number ol shares at the beginning of year 7039082 7 039082
Number of shares issued during the year - -
Number of shares bought our during the year S - S
NUMBER OF SHARES AT THE END OF THE YEAR 7 039 082 7 039 082
Number of days of shares being outstanding 365 305
Fotal number ol days during the reporting year 365 365
Weichted temporary coelficient 1,0 1,0
Average weighted number of ordinary shares to caleulate base earnings per
share _ 7039 082 7039 082
Average weighted number of shares outstanding taking into account the
effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares 7 039 082 7 139 082

See below information aboul earnings and number of shares used in calculations of base and diluted earnings per share
(m USD):

—111 2017

Netearnings attributable (o holders of ordinary shares Lo calculate base

earnings per share 589 3106

Net carnings attributable to holders of ordinary shares adjusted taking into

account dilutive efTect 589 316

Net carnings attributable to holders of ordinary shares to calculate

base earnings 0,08 0,04

Net earnings attributable to holders of ordinary shares adjusted

taking into account ditutive effect ’ 0,08 0,04
20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In these financial statements parties are considered to be refated. where one ol the parties has the ability to controf tic
other party or exercise significant influence over the financial and operational decisions ol'the other party. as delined
in1AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™. Related parties may enter into agreements that would not be conducted between
unrclated parties. the prices and conditions tor such transactions may differ from the agreements and conditions
between unrefated parties. The decision about which parties are refated is taken not only on the basis ol their legal
form. but resulting from the nature of relations with relaled parties.

Related parties ol the Group include:

. owners and their close family members:
* key management stalT;
. entities under control or joint controb of the owners.

< Transactions with key management personngl

Key management personnel are employees having authority and responsibitity for planning, administrating and

controlling the activities of the Group.

Key managing personnel did not receive any remuneration except for safary in the amount of USD 346 thousands
during 2018 and USD 338 thousand for 2017; the number of key exccutives - 11. Remuneration to the key personncl
is included in administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

Other receivables include free loans to key personnel in the amount of USD 13 thousand as of 31 December 2018 and
USD 45 thousand as ol 31 December 2017,

There were no other related party transactions (except those listed above) for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017.
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PISC KMZ INDUST]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

27, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities
Legal Aspects
In the normal course of business the Group is subject to litigation and claims. Management believes that the ultimate

amount of liabilities that may arise as a result of such litigation and claims will not have a material adverse effect on
its financial position or results of future operations of the Group.

Loy risks

Ukramian laws and regulations governing taxation and other aspects of the enterprises operational matters, meluding
exchange rates control and customs regulations, continue to evolve as a result of economic transition. The provisions
of Taws and regulations are oflen vague and their interpretation depends on the position of local, regional and national
authorities and other public bodies. Cases of different interpretations of the law are not single.

Ihe activity of the Group and its financial position will continue to be influenced by the development of the potitical
situation in Ukraine, as well as the application of existing and future legislative and regulatory acts in the field of
taxation, The management believes that such unforeseen circumstances will not have on the Group greater impact
than other similar companies in Ukraine,

Commitmenty

The Group as a e

The Group is liable Tor operating lease necessary for the operation of its fand plots and equipment. Lease payments
are preliminary agreed between the Group and the lessors. According Lo the ugreements, being non-canceled as ol'31
December, the future minimum lease payments for the next reporting period will include:

3 31122018 31.12.2017
greements with the term up 1o one year 50 45

fand
arcements with the term over one year. but not exceeding five years - -
greements with the term over five years ; _ -

TOTAL

A
A
A

{

The Group as a lessor

The Group concluded a number of contracts for leasing premises. According to the non-canceled agreements. as at 3
December. the Tuture minimum lease revenue [or the next reporting pertod will be:

3122018 31122007

Agreements with the term up (o one year I I
Agreements with the term over one vear, but not exceeding five years 3 -

Agrcements with the term over five years o e
TOTAL

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise loans and borrowings. cash and cash equivalents. [n addition,
the Group has various other financial instruments, such as trade and other receivables and payables, which arise
directly from its operations. The Group’s policy is not to enter in trade in financial instruments. The Group’s overall
visk management program focuses on the unpredictability and inefliciency of the Ukrainiin financial markets and
seeks o minimize potential adverse effects on the financial position of the Group.

The main risks. arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate visk, foreign currency risk, fiquidity
risk and credit risk. The management of the Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these visks.
The essence of these approaches is disclosed below.
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PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2018 and for the veuar then ended
(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise stated)

Classilication of financial instruments

At the reporting dates linancial instruments are stated as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cosl
Trade and other accounts receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Loans and borrowings

Trade and other accounts payable

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Loans and accounts payable
Trade and other accounts receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Loans and borrowings

Trade and other accounts payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Interest rate risk

I 058
593

2251

31122017
72
1280

.l 3 :’ 7 i

The interest rate risk. generally, relates 1o interest-bearing loans and other debt obligations of the Group. The Group's
manacement reviews market interest rates in order to minimize the interest rate risk that the Group is exposed to.

Interest rate tisk usually arises i respect of floating inferest rate financial assets and financial Habilities. Foureign
currency risk exposure is determined in relation to the Group's functional currency. For the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, the Group had no financial liabilities with variable interest raies,

Liquidity risk

Fhe Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of loans
provided by banks and supplicrs. The Group monitors its assets and liabilities as to circulation and mature terms and
plans its hiquidity depending upon the expected assumptions ol various instruments repayment.

Fhe table below summarizes the maturity prolile of the Group’s financial assets and labilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments as at 31 December:

Statement of

31.12.2018 . . -
s ARICAL OSIAO_
Loans and borrowings 1658
Trade and other pavables 2
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21251

31122017 ) .‘i(ul.uncnl ‘<)II'

R ~_ [fimancial position
Loans and borrowings 1034
Trade and other pavables 220
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1260

o Contractual cash flows
Less than  Less than

3months 12 months ! . e _l_() -
75 I 731 10 18§22

393 - s 593
=Y - TR

Contractual cash flows

L.ess than Less than A
3 months 12 months I{H‘“;_ _] = ‘I.H‘ .
48 L Jili2 I8 I 178
sl 162 9 080
505 1274 25 L B4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended
(in thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

[n accordance with IFRS 7. currency risk arises on (inancial instruments in a non-functional currency and is monetary
in nature: risks related to currency translation are not taken into account. Currency risk arises mainly in non-functional
currencies in which the Group has its financial instruments.

Tables below present the provided monetary financial assets and liabilities of the Group at carrying amounts as ol the
reporting date:

I saz28 UAH  EUR
Trade and other accounts receivable 229 -
Cashand cash equivalents 203 2 205
TOTAL ASSETS 492 2 494
lLoans and borrowings I 658 - I 638
Irade and other accounts payable 470 123 593
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2128 123 2251
NET POSITION (1 636y (21 (1 757)
32,2017 _ ) UAH EUR
Trade and other gccounts receivable 72 -
Cash and cash equivalents ) | 278 2
TOTAL ASSETS 1 350 2
Loans and borrowings 034 - ORE
I'rade and other accounts payable 09 309
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1334 9 | 343
NET POSITION 16 (7) 9

[he table below demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's prolit before tax and equity 1o possible moderate exchunuee
rate changes, with other components held constant:

Effect on profit before tax and equity o _For the reporting year )
At 31 December 2018

Increase of exchange rate by 5% (0)

Decrease of exchange rate by 3% 6

AC 31 December 2017
fncrease of exchange rate by 10% (hH

Decrease of exchange rate by 10% |

Credil risk

FFinancial instruments that potentially expose the Group to the concentration ol credit risks primarily include trade and
other receivables. cash and cash equivalents. The Group management has an appropriate credit policy. and possible
credit risks are constantly monitored. Credit risk is assessed for all customers. which are credited for the amoum
exceeding a certain limit, Most ol the Group's sales are made to customers who have an appropriate credit history. or
on the basis of payment. The Group does not require collateral as security for its financial assets. Credit risk of the
Group is monitored and anatyzed in cach case, and based on the statistics of debt collection management betieves thi
it has no signilicant risk of loss in excess of the amounts recognized in provisions to cover impairment losses on cach
category ol assets. Cash is placed in such financial institutions, which are subject to mimimal risk of default at the time
of placement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asal 31 December 2018 and Tor the year then ended
(in thousands of USD, unless otherwise stated)

!

!

Maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date has comprised:

31122018 31.12.2017

Trade and other accounts receivable 229 72
Cash and cash equivalents _ 205 1280
TOTAL 494 [ 352

kK ok

Capital managemen

Ihe Group considers equity and borrowings as the main sources of financing. The main objective of the Group's
capital management is to maintain sulficient credit and equity ratios to maintain the Group's ability (o continue as
comne concern. Capital risk management mainly relates to meeting the requirements ol Ukrainian law.

I'he capital management policy is aimed at ensuring and maintaining an optimal capital structure in order to reduce
the overall capital expenditures and flexibility relating to the Group's access to capital markets,

Maraeement seeks 1o keep balance between the higher yvields that can be achieved with a higher level of borrowing
and the benetits and stabitity provided by a sound equity position.

_am There were no changes in the approach to capital management during the reporting period.

— The Group uses EBITDA to analyze profitability and liquidity risks on its payables.
= 31122018 31.12.2017
s Income from sales 4 601 9 984
— Cost of sales ' o (ltdedy (7647
B Gross profil 3137 2 342
_ Administralive expenses ) (1 341) (1 082)
— Commercial expenses (773) (5706)
Other income 90 49
— Other expenses § (178 (1s7)
Operating profit net of interest and taxes 938 570
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 219 212
— Amortization ol intangible assels i o2 &
EBITDA 156 790
—
29. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fhe fair value of (inancial assets and liabilities included in the financial statements is the amount for which
o the nstrument could be exchanged as a result of a curvent transaction between interested parties other than a forced
o sale or liguidation,
o The following methods and assumptions were used to determine fair value:
E : the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables. and other current liabilities
approximately equals (o their carrying amount. Targely due (o the fact that these instruments will be repaid i
:é the near future:
i . the fair value of loans provided by the Group and other financial labilities is determined by discounting future
‘ cash fTows using current rates for debt with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMIY

Asat 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

(in thousands ol USD. unless otherwise stated)

Hierarchy of the fair value measurement

PJSC KMZ INDUSTRIES

The Group assesses [inancial instruments and non-financial assets, such as fixed assets at fair value at each date of the
statement of financial position. All assets and liabilities measuved at fair value are classified within the fuir value

ierarchy described betow:

. Instruments whose fair value was determined based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities — Level |

. [nstruments whose fair value was determined on the basis ol on the non-guotation prices included in Level 1,
the inputs observable for the asset or liability directly (prices) or indirectly (price derivatives) -~ Level 2

. [nstruments whose [air value was based on unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities (unobservable inputs)

Level 3.

Fhe table beiow represents the hierarchy of fair va

Statenment
31.12.2018 of financial
e - o position
Financial assets whose Tair value is disclosed
{rade and othier accounts receivable 229
Cash and cash equivalents 205
IFinancial liabilities whose fair value is disclosed
Loans and borrowings | 658
Frade and other accounts payable 593
Statement
of financial
[— 1 v -2 position
Iinancial assets whose lair value is disclosed
I'rade and other accounts receivable 72
Cash and cash cquivalents 1 280
Financial liabilities whose lair value is disclosed
lLoans and borrowings 1 034
rade and other accounts payvable 220
30. FEVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATLE

Level 1

Level I’

ue measurements of the Group's assets and liabilities:

Level 2 Level 3 TOTAL
- 229 229
205 265
- | 658 I 058
B 593 593
Level 2 Level 3 TOTAL
- 72 72
- | 280 I 280
- [ 034 VO34
B 220 220

Afler the reporting date, there were no significant events that had material impact on understanding ol these financial

statements.,

Page 46 ol 46



BDO LLC
BDO CONSULTING LLC
BDO CORPORATE FINANCE LLC

201-203, Kharkivske Road, 10th floor 4, Andriia Fabra Street
Kyiv, 02121, Ukraine Dnipro, 49000, Ukraine
Tel.: (+38 044) 393 26 87, 88 Tel.: (+38 056) 370 40 43
Fax: (+38 044) 393 26 91 Fax: (+38 056) 370 30 45
E-mail: bdo@bdo.kiev.ua E-mail: dnipro@bdo.com.ua

Lviv, 79000, Ukraine Odesa, 65000, Ukraine

Tel.: (+38 044) 393 26 87, 88 Tel.: (+38 044) 393 26 87, 88
Fax: (+38 044) 393 26 91 Fax: (+38 044) 393 26 91
E-mail: lviv@bdo.com.ua E-mail: odesa@bdo.com.ua

www.bdo.ua
www.bdo.global

BDO LLC, BDO CONSULTING LLC, BDO CORPORATE FINANCE LLC -
are the Ukrainian limited liability companies, which are the member firms of BDO,
the international worldwide network of public accounting firms.

(A e e

BDO LLC, a Ukrainian LLC, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



